FLORIDA BOARD OF GOVERNORS NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDED REGULATION

DATE: June 27, 2016

REGULATION NUMBER AND TITLE: 1.001 University Board of Trustees Powers and Duties

SUMMARY: The amendments to Regulation 1.001 mirror changes in section 1001.71, Florida Statutes, as contained in House Bill 7029 which become effective July 1, 2016. The amended regulation also requires university boards of trustees to keep and within two (2) weeks after board of trustees meetings to post dfca]bYbhmcb h Yi b]j Yfg]m website detailed meeting minutes for all meetings, including the vote history and attendance of each trustee.

FULL TEXT OF THE REGULATION IS INCLUDED WITH THIS NOTICE.

AUTHORITY TO PROPOSE REGULATION(S): Section 7(d), Art. IX, Fla. Const.; BOG Regulation Development Procedure dated March 23, 2006.

THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS' OFFICIAL INITIATING THE PROPOSED REGULATION: Vikki Shirley, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

COMMENTS REGARDING THE PROPOSED REGULATION SHOULD BE SUBMITTED WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE TO THE CONTACT PERSON IDENTIFIED BELOW. The comments must identify the regulation on which you are commenting:

1.001 University Board of Trustees Powers and Duties

(1) Pursuant to Article IX, section 7(c), Florida Constitution, the Board of Governors shall establish the powers and duties of the board of trustees as set Zcfh `\YfY]b 'UbX 'Ug'a Um'VY'YghUY`]g\YX']b '6cUfX 'cZ'; cj YfbcfgÑfY[i `Uh]cbg'''H\]g' regulation supersedes the delegation of authority to the boards of trustees WtbhU]bYX']b 'h\Y'6cUfX'cZ'; cj YfbcfgÑF Ygc`i h]cb 'XUhYX '>Ubi Ufm+z'&\$\$' "''H\Y' intent of this regulation is to delegate powers and duties to the university boards of trustees so that the university boards have all of the powers and duties necessary and appropriate for the direction, operation, management, and accountability of each state university.

- (2) Composition of Boards; Membership and Organization.
 - (a) Each university shall be administered by a board of trustees, consisting of thirteen members dedicated to the purposes of the State University System. Each university board of trustees includes six members appointed by the Governor and five members appointed by the Board of Governors, all of whom must be confirmed by the Senate. All trustees are required to attend a Board of Governors orientation session, preferably prior to service on the university board. The chair of the faculty senate, or the equivalent, and the president of Student Government, or the equivalent, are also members. Board of trustee members shall serve staggered terms of five years and may be reappointed for subsequent terms, except for the faculty and student representatives who shall serve for the duration of the term of their respective elected offices. All members are public officers subject to the requirements of the Florida Code of Ethics.
 - (b) Each board of trustees shall select its chair and vice chair from the appointed members. Each chair shall serve for two years and may be reselected for one additional consecutive two-year term. Any exception to this term of office must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the board of trustees.
 - (c) The duties of the chair shall include presiding at all meetings of the board of trustees, calling special meetings of the board of trustees, attesting to actions of the board of trustees, and notifying the Board of Governors or the Governor, as applicable, in writing whenever a board member has three consecutive unexcused absences from regular board meetings in any fiscal year, which may be grounds for removal as provided in section 1001.71, Florida Statutes.
 - (de) The university president shall serve as the chief executive officer and corporate secretary of the board of trustees and shall be responsible to the board of trustees for all operations of the university and for setting

the agenda for meetings of the board of trustees in consultation with the chair.

- (ed) Members of the boards of trustees shall receive no compensation but may be reimbursed for travel and per diem expenses as provided in section- 112.061, Florida Statutes.
- (fe) Each board of trustees shall establish the powers and duties of the university president.

(g

- 8. antihazing, related penalties, and program for enforcement;
- 9. reasonable accommodation of religious observances; and

10. uniform student code of conduct and related penalties. Such regulations or policies shall be consistent with any applicable 6cUfX cZ; cj YfbcfgÑfY[i `Uh]cbg"

- (b) Each board of trustees shall establish a committee to periodically review and evaluate the student judicial system. At least one-half of the members of the committee shall be students appointed by the student body president.
- (c) Each board of trustees shall approve the internal procedures of student government organizations.
- (d) Each board of trustees shall require that institutional control and oversight of its intercollegiate athletics program is in compliance with the rules and regulations of the National Collegiate Athletic Association. The university president is responsible for the administration of all aspects of the intercollegiate athletics program.
- (5) Personnel.
 - (a) Each board of trustees shall provide for the establishment of the personnel program for all the employees of the university, including the president, which may include but is not limited to: compensation and other conditions of employment, recruitment and selection, nonreappointment, standards for performance and conduct, evaluation, benefits and hours of work, leave policies, recognition and awards, inventions and works, travel, learning opportunities, exchange programs, academic freedom and responsibility, promotion,

of the selected candidate to the Board of Governors for its consideration in confirming the candidate. The candidate selected by the board of trustees shall be required to appear before the Board of Governors at the meeting where confirmation of the candidate will be considered. Such meeting will be held as soon as practicable to ensure a timely transition. A two-thirds vote of the Board of Governors shall be required to deny confirmation of a candidate selected by a board of trustees.

- (d) In the event that a board of trustees selects an interim president, such selection is subject to confirmation of the candidate by the Board of Governors. If it is determined by the board of trustees to be in the best interests of the university, the interim president selected by the board may be delegated full authority to serve as the interim president during the period prior to confirmation by the Board of Governors. Continued service as interim president requires confirmation by the Board of trustees shall be required to appear before the Board of Governors at the meeting where confirmation will be considered. Such meeting will be held as soon as practicable to ensure a timely transition.
- (e) Each board of trustees shall develop guidelines for the annual evaluation of the president.
- (f) Each board of trustees shall conduct an annual evaluation of the president. The chair of the board of trustees shall request input from the Chair of the Board of Governors, who may involve the Chancellor, during the annual evaluation process pertaining to responsiveness to the 6cUfX cZ; cj YfbcfgÑgfUhY[]W[cU`g`UbX df]cf]h]YgžUbX Wta d`]UbW` with systemwide regulations.
- (6) Financial Management.
 - (a) Each board of trustees shall be responsible for the financial management of its university and shall submit an institutional budget request, including a request for fixed capital outlay, and an operating budget to the Board of Governors for approval in accordance with the guidelines established by the Board of Governors.
 - (b) Each board of trustees shall establish tuition and fees in accordance with regulations established by the Board of Governors.
 - (c) Each board of trustees shall establish waivers for tuition and fees pursuant to regulations established by the Board of Governors.
 - (d) Each board of trustees shall engage in sound debt management practices for the issuance of debt by the university and its direct support organizations, and shall comply with the guidelines established by the Board of Governors in connection with the

authorization, issuance and sale of university and direct support organization debt.

- (e) Each board of trustees shall account for expenditures of all state, local, federal, and other funds in accordance with guidelines or regulations established by the Board of Governors, and as provided by state or federal law.
- (f) Each board of trustees may enter into agreements for, and accept, credit card payments as compensation for goods, services, tuition, and fees.
- (g) Each board of trustees shall establish policies and procedures for the performance of annual internal audits of university finances and operations. All reports generated from such audits must be submitted to the Board of Governors after review and acceptance by the board of trustees, or its designee.
- (h) Each board of trustees and each direct support organization shall submit annual financial statements to the Board of Governors.
- (7) Property and Purchasing.
 - (a) Each board of trustees and university direct support organization must obtain prior approval from the Board of Governors before entering into a binding contractual obligation to improve real property that will result in the board or the direct support organization seeking a commitment of state funds for the development, construction, operation, or maintenance of an educational or research facility.
 - (b) Each board of trustees shall have the authority to acquire real and personal property and contract for the sale and disposal of same, and approve and execute contracts for purchase, sale, lease, license, or acquisition of commodities, goods, equipment, and contractual services, leases of real and personal property, and construction. The acquisition may include purchase by installment or lease-purchase. Such contracts may provide for payment of interest on the unpaid portion of the purchase price.
 - (c) With respect to state-funded real property acquisitions, each board of trustees may, with the consent of the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund, sell, convey, transfer, exchange, trade, or purchase real property and related improvements necessary and desirable to serve the needs and purposes of the university.
 - The board of trustees may secure appraisals and surveys in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund. Whenever the board of trustees finds it necessary for timely property

administration of such trust or to accomplish the purposes of any such trust. Nothing herein shall be construed to authorize a board of

transfer for the public benefit. Such policies must include, without limitation, provisions that take into account the contributions of university personnel in the development of work products and that require any proceeds from such work products be used to support the research and sponsored training programs of the university.

- (e) Each board of trustees is responsible for compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and requirements.
- (f) Each board of trustees shall perform such other duties as provided by the Board of Governors, or as each board of trustees may determine are necessary or appropriate for the administration of the university so long as the trustees comply with any applicable laws and Board of ; cj YfbcfgÑfY[i `Uh]cbg'UbX'dc`]WYg"

Authority: Section 7(c), Art. IX, Fla. Const.; History: Resolution 1-07-03, New 3-26-09, Amended 09-16-10, _____.